
FEMP works to reduce the cost and environmental impact of the Federal government
by advancing energy efficiency and water conservation, promoting the use of
renewable energy, and improving utility management decisions at Federal sites.

Deployment of Distributed Energy Resources:
Sources of Financial Assistance and Information

December 2001

Financial assistance to Federal agencies helps to reduce the cost of installing Distributed Energy Resources
(DER) at facilities. FEMP has undertaken this effort to identify sources of funding that may be available to
Federal agencies for the implementation of DER projects. This document has been designed to briefly
summarize the potential funding source and provide the user with a quick link to the Web addresses where more
detailed information can be found.

Three types of funding sources may be available for Federal DER projects: DOE support, state programs, and
utility programs. Although Federal support for energy technologies is aimed primarily at research and
development, some financial support is becoming available for DER deployment. When states have funding
programs, they are typically at a higher dollar level than the more limited Federal programs. Some state public
service commissions mandate that investor-owned utilities sponsor incentives for DER, energy efficiency, and
renewable energy. Other utilities voluntarily offer these incentives to their customers.

Financial Assistance

System Benefit Funds (SBF)

As some states restructured their electric utility industries, 22 states have created pockets of dollars funded by
electric customers. These programs help support certain energy policy goals, such as renewable energy
development, energy efficiency incentives, energy research and development, and support for low-income
customers. The charge to ratepayers varies by state (ranging from .5% to 4%), averaging about 3% of the
customer’s electric bill. States have the option of creating these funding sources without restructuring their
electric power industry (Wisconsin is an example). Depending upon the specific design in each state, these
dollars are administered either by utilities, non-profit organizations, or state agencies. Information on each state
funding program is available at http://utilityrestructuring.femp.doe.gov. According to the American Council for
Energy Efficient Economy www.aceee.org, the amount of state funds available in the U.S. totals $1.697 billion.
The emphasis on SBF allocation appears to be shifting somewhat towards peak reduction. A presentation by
Matthew Brown that gives an overview of SBF is available at
www.hawaii.gov/dbedt/ert/symposium/brown/brown.html.

Two states in particular, California and New York, have large SBF programs.
• For California information, see the FEMP Web site:

www.eren.doe.gov/femp/resources/dir_caupdates.html, the California Energy Commission Web site:
www.energy.ca.gov, and the California Public Utilities Commission Web site:
www.consumerenergycenter.org/rebate/index.php.

• For New York information, see http://www.nyserda.org/sbc.html.
Since state laws, rules, and programs are subject to change, energy managers are encouraged to regularly check
the current status of state SBF policy and financial opportunities flowing from the SBF to support DER projects.
A fast way to accomplish this is to visit the following DOE Web site at
www.eren.doe.gov/state_energy/states.cfm.
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Other Regulatory and Funding Information

It is also recommended that Federal energy managers view the “Database for State Incentives for Renewable
Energy,” located at www.dcs.ncsu.edu/solar/dsire/finframe.html. This Web site is managed by the Interstate
Renewable Energy Council, funded by the U.S. Department of Energy's Office of Power Technologies and
managed by the North Carolina Solar Center.

Wind Projects
In March 2001, the American Wind Energy Association (AWEA) produced  “Inventory of State Incentives for
Wind Energy in the U.S.” The inventory provides a state-by-state survey, with information about the local wind
resource and about financial, economic, and regulatory incentives for wind energy in each state. For more
information see www.awea.org/policy/index.html#State Policies.

Combined Heat and Power
The Federal Energy Management Program updates its Web site with opportunities for Combined Heat and
Power. For more information see http://www.eren.doe.gov/femp/techassist/der_resources.html.

Financing Distributed Generation
“Financing Distributed Generation” is an 11-page report produced by Andy Walker, Ph.D., of the National
Renewable Energy Laboratory’s FEMP Program. The paper discusses several mechanisms for financing DER
projects. E-mail a request for the “Conference Paper for the Association of Energy Engineers’ 2001 Annual
Meeting” to pamela_lee@nrel.gov.

Private Sector Guidebooks
Private companies prepare guidebooks of funding sources and incentives for DER. Two reports were recently
produced:

• Information about EFI Consulting Services’ report is located at www.efinc.com/guidebook_facts.asp.

• Information about Energy Info Source’s report is located at
www.energyinfosource.com/products/product.cfm?report_ID=7.

FEMP does not endorse private products, and FEMP recognizes that other companies may offer similar reports.
The omission of other reports is not intended to endorse the two reports that have been referenced.

DER How-To Guide
DER includes a wide variety of technologies and techniques. The technologies include, but are not necessarily
limited to: diesel engines, dual fuel engines, natural gas engines, combustion turbines, microturbines, fuel cells,
photovoltaic solar cells, wind turbines, storage devices, and hybrids. Information on these technologies is found
on Web sites listed in this document. A FEMP publication, entitled “Implementing Distributed Energy
Resources: A How-To Guide For Federal Facilities Managers” will be published by January 2002.
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Links for More Information

The following Web sites have DER content.

Federal websites

Department of Energy – Federal Energy Management
Program (FEMP)
www.eren.doe.gov/femp

Department of Energy – Distributed Energy Resources
Program
www.eren.doe.gov/der

Department of Energy – Regional Office Representatives
www.eren.doe.gov/femp/aboutfemp/doe_regional_office.html

FEMP Design Assistance Program
www.eren.doe.gov/femp/techassist/designassist.html

FEMP Energy Saver Showcase Program
www.eren.doe.gov/femp/prodtech/get_recogniz.html

FEMP SAVEnergy Program
www.eren.doe.gov/femp/techassist/savenergyprog.html

FEMP Renewable Energy Resources
www.eren.doe.gov/femp/techassist/renewenergy.html

Energy Information Administration
www.eia.doe.gov

Federal Incentives for Commercial Solar Applications
www.mdv-seia.org/federal_incentives.htm

FEMP Guide to Greening of Federal Facilities
www.eren.doe.gov/femp/greenfed

FEMP Handbook for Promoting Behavior-Based Energy
Efficiency in Military Housing
www.eren.doe.gov/femp/yhtp/strategies.html

Department of Energy – Office of Power Technologies
www.eren.doe.gov/power
www.eren.doe.gov/power/repi.html

U.S. Environmental Protection Agency
www.epa.gov
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Industry and other websites

Association Council for Energy Efficient Economy
www.aceee.org

Edison Electric Institute
www.eei.org

Energy-efficient Product Information
www.energystar.gov

Solar Energy Industries Association
www.seia.org

American Wind Energy Association
www.awea.org

United States Fuel Cell Council
www.usfcc.com

Online Fuel Cell Information Center
www.fuelcells.org

Electricity Storage Association
www.energystorage.org/

National Association of Regulatory Utility Commissioners
www.naruc.org

Institute of Electrical and Electronics Engineers
www.ieee.org

SolarBuzz
www.solarbuzz.com

USDOE Distributed Power Program
www.eren.doe.gov/distributedpower
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